
Parish news 
Stone, Dinton & Hartwell with Aston Sandford  

Part of Wychert Vale Benefice    
September 2016    ǒ    60p (Ã6.00pa) 

 

 
From Christ, the whole body grows and builds itself up in love, 

As each part does its workò 
Ephesians 4:16  
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Wychert Vale Benefice contacts   
The Revd Margot Hodson Rector, Wychert Vale Benefice  

Revd Canon Dr. Phil Groves (Assistant Rector) 
Benefice Office, St. Mary's Centre Station Road Haddenham Aylesbury, Bucks, 

HP17 8AJ Tel: 01844 291108  
rector@wychertvale.org        vicar@haddenhamstmarys.org    

 
For Baptisms, Weddings and Funerals, please contact:  

The Parish Administrator Benefice Office 
office@wychertvale.org        office@haddenhamstmarys.org   

Parish contacts 
 

Licensed 
Lay Minister: 

Avril Clark,  Dunoon, 1 New Road, Princes Risborough HP27 0JN, 

Tel: 01844 342165. 
Church 
Wardens: 

Eryl Morgan, 101 Baker Street Waddesdon,  HP18 0LQ 
Tel: 01296 655692     erylrm@outlook.com 

 Jean Moore, 'Larkrise', 4 Templecroft Terrace, Upton. HP17 8UD. 
Tel: 01296 748063 

 Raymond Medhurst 10 Grenville Road Aylesbury HP21 8EY 
Tel:07793 541456 
Email: raymond.medhurst@stonedintonhartwell.com  

 Valma Thompson  Meadway, Greenend, Dinton.  HP17 8UR 
Tel: 01296 748561     Email: valma.thompson@btinternet.com 

Secretary to 
the P.C.C: 

Sue Birrell, 7 Jakeman Way, Aylesbury. HP21 8FT 
Tel: 01296 338163 

Hon. 
Treasurer: 

Alan Weston, Dimora, Greenend, Dinton HP17 8UR 
Tel: 01296 748287         Email: alaneweston@gmail.com 

Aston 
Sandford 

Contact: 
Treasurer         Marilynne Morgan    4mam.morgan@gmail.com  

 

Parish Council contacts: 
    Stone, Bishopstone & Hartwell 
    Parish Clerk   Allison Stone         01296 698573 clerk@sbhpc.org 
    Dinton Ford & Upton 
    Parish Clerk   Keith Gray       01296 422800 keithgray@dinton.org 

 

Parish websites: 
 

Church www.stonedintonhartwell.com 

Stone www.stonevillage.org.uk 

Jubilee Pavilion www.jubileepavilion.co.uk 

Bishopstone www.bishopstone.info 

Dinton PC www.dinton.org 

Dinton News www.dinton.info 
 

 
Front Cover:  Photo taken by Barry Lynch 
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Parish news 
   

 

A Cross on a Hillside.  
 

Many of us visited the Bishopstone Road excavation open day a few weeks ago. 
It was fascinating to see the items that had been found and listen to the guides 
talk with so much enthusiasm and knowledge.  
 

It is amazing that there is so much history literally under our feet. The site 
contained a Roman ditch, medieval buildings, and possibly a Civil War era 
earthwork. People have lived and worked here for centuries if not millennia. The 
buildings are contemporary with the period when S. John Baptist church was built 
so they could have been used by the craftsmen who worked on the site. 
 

I was interested in the footpath at the rear of the building area. There is evidence 
that people have used that path for over a thousand years to go to and from the 
church. Before that there would have been a Saxon church and earlier perhaps 
just a cross on the hill. Christianity is historical in the sense that is based on 
historical fact and the witness of generations. We have a responsibility to build on 
that and pass on the faith to the next generation. 
 

We are now well into the new chapter in our parish with the larger benefice and 
more recently have been joined by Phil Groves, our Assistant Rector, and his 
family who we have welcomed into the community.  
 

News team 
Editor:  David Pickup  01296 748170 david@pickupandscott.co.uk 
Editorial:  Carole Fryer 01296 748538 carole.e.fryer@btinternet.com 
Advertising: Tom Claridge 01296 748322 tom_claridge@yahoo.com 
IT Producers: Mike Thompson 01296 748561  mwthompson40@gmail.com 
  Carol Lynch 01296 748392  lynchcaz@gmail.com 
 

Parish News is a community magazine for the residents of Stone, Dinton, Ford, Upton, 
Hartwell and Aston Sandford. We welcome news, announcements by societies and 
clubs, and articles on local and other issues. We do not charge for charities or personal 
notices such as weddings, baptisms or acknowledgments and welcome advertising by 
local businesses. 
The views expressed in articles are not necessarily views of the editorial board or the PCC 

The deadline for editorial copy is 7
th

 of the previous month and the  
deadline for advertising is 14

th 
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Parish Services and Calendar  
 

 

September 
St John  

the Baptist 
Stone 

St Peter & 
Paul 

Dinton 

Stone 
Methodist 

Chapel  

Aston 
Sandford 

 
4 
Trinity 15 

 
10.00am  
All Age 

Holy 
Communion 

 
6.00pm 

Evensong 
at Hartwell 

House 
(see page 21) 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

11.00am 
Worship 

 

 
 

 
11 
Trinity 16 

  
8.30am 

BCP 
Holy 

Communion 
 

10.00am 
Family 
Service 

 

 
 
 

11.00am 
Holy 

Communion 
 

 

 
18 
Trinity 17 

 
 

10.00am 
BCP Matins 

 

 
 

 
11.00am 
Harvest 

Thanksgiving 
 
 

 
11.00 

Traditional 
Communion 

Service 

 
25 
Trinity 18 
 
 

 
 

 
10.00am 
All Age  

Holy 
Communion 

(Harvest) 

 
 

11.00am  
Worship 

 
 

 

 

Stone, Bishopstone & Hartwell Fete  
Monday 29th May 2017 

The next planning meeting for next yearôs fete will be on  
Wednesday 21

st
 September at 7 pm at the Pavilion. 

Enquiries please contact David Pickup 
01296 397794 

david@pickupandscott.co.uk 
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Wychert Vale Benefice     
www.wychertvale.org 

Parish of Stone, Dinton and Hartwell 
Churches of: St John Baptist, STONE; Ss Peter & Paul, DINTON; Assumption of St Mary the Virgin, HARTWELL 

www.stonedintonhartwell.com 

Letter from Aston Sandford 
July would normally be a very quiet month in the benefice and especially 
in Aston Sandford where we usually would have only our usual third 
Sunday service; however this July seems to have been quite different with 
a lot to report. 

Firstly, we must add Aston Sandfordôs welcome to the 
Revôd Nadine Rose as Stipendiary Curate for Wychert 
Vale; Nadine was ordained in July at Oxford 
Cathedral and Nick and Marilynne Morgan were there.  
She will live in the parsonage house at Cuddington 
and serve across the benefice. 

Secondly, we held the funeral for Clive Aston on almost the hottest 
(29°C+) day of the year. Cliveôs funeral was attended by over 160 people. 
Clive had been an army officer, who saw active service in WW2, and after 
the war was a Colonel in the TA - there was a rifle salute after the service. 
The donations were shared between the church and Sir Jackie Stewart's 
charity ñRace Against Dementiaò.  We used our PA system to relay the 
service to the marquee outside the church, but that was only possible with 
the support given by Val Walker and Roger Ward of St Maryôs which we 
very much appreciated.  

Finally, with the help of my wife, Sue, in the capacity of 
óactingô warden, I participated in the Licensing of The 
Revd Canon Dr Phil Groves by the Bishop of 
Buckingham on 27th July at St Peter and St Paul 
Church, Dinton.  At which service, on behalf of Aston 
Sandford, I was able to welcome Phil to the Benefice. 

Can I remind you of our usual Traditional Communion service (Common 
Worship, Order One) at 11 am. On the third Sunday of the month, with 
four sung hymns (Ancient & Modern New Standard). After the Service, all 
are welcome to have a cup of coffee at a nearby house or occasionally in 
the church. Parking is in the Manor Courtyard beside the church. 

David J Peck 
Church Warden ï Aston Sandford Church 
01844 292110 suepeck@waitrose.com 
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The Seven Stars, Dinton 
Bienvenue to a beautiful 16

th
 century traditional British 

Pub Restaurant with a flair of Francais, tucked away, in 
the picturesque village of Dinton.  

Enjoy a homemade, freshly cooked meal made with 
only the finest local produce in the restaurant, 

 bar, snug or large beer garden.  
Free Wi-Fi and private parties also catered for. 

Stars Lane, Dinton, HP17 8UL    Telephone: 01296 749000 

E-mail: steph@sevenstarsdinton.com 
www.sevenstarsdinton.com 

The Seven Stars accommodates for wheelchairs, providing both 
disabled parking and wheelchair access to the bar and restaurant  

 

The Crown, Cuddington 

17th Century thatched pub in an award winning village. 
Open fire, pie & pudding Wednesday, fish & chip 
Friday, dogs welcome in bar, fine guest ales, featured 
in CAMRA, Michelin Guide and Good Food Guide.  

Spurt Street, Cuddington, HP18 0BB      
Telephone: 01844 292222 

Bar opening hours: 
Monday-Saturday 12pm-3pm and 6pm-11pm, Sunday 12pm-10.30pm 

Food served Monday-Saturday 12-2.15 pm 6.30-9.15, Sunday 12pm-3pm 
Email: david@thecrowncuddington.co.uk 

www.thecrowncuddington.co.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Phone number 01296 337228 
www.templestreetwinebar.co.uk 

 
 

Elegant and fun dining in Aylesbury Old Town. Temple Street is a stylish 
cocktail bar, eating house and wine bar. Come and check us out, ideal  

for pre theatre dining  

file:///C:/Users/mwtho_000/Documents/Magazine/February%202015/www.sevenstarsdinton.com
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We are sorry to report the passing of the following local men 
 

Private 4383 Frederick William SAYELL 
Oxford & Bucks Light Infantry 

Died 30 September 1916 
 

Fred was born in Ford in 1878 and enlisted at Aylesbury on  
15th November 1915. 

He was discharged on 1 May 1916 because ñno longer fit for serviceò. 
Before the war he was a labourer as was his father. 

 

Commemorated at Dinton and Ford Memorials 

 
Private 21395 Fred MATTHEWS 

Oxford & Bucks Light Infantry 5th Battalion 
Died  15 Sep 1916  

 

Buried at Delville Wood Cemetery, Longueval,  
Somme, France  X.B.4 

Commemorated at Dinton Memorial  
Enlisted Aylesbury 

 
Corporal 2970 James Miller 

3rd Battalion Coldstream Guards 
Died  23rd September 1916 aged unknown 

 

Buried at Delville Wood Cemetery Longueval Somme  II.N.2 
 

Commemorated at Stone War Memorial Gates 
Died of wounds 

 
Guardsman 21845 Francis Edward (Frank) HALLS 

Grenadier Guards 2nd Battalion 
Died 26 Sep 1916 aged unknown 

 

Buried at Thiepval Memorial, Somme, France Pier & Face 8D 
 

Commemorated at Stone Hospital 
 Memorial  

 

Enlisted High Wycombe 
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Acting Sergeant 114289 Cecil Farmborough Beechey 
Died  15th September 1916.aged 23 

 

1st Battalion Canadian Mounted Rifles (Saskatchewan Regiment) 
 

Commemorated at Vimy Memorial Pas de Calais France 
 

Commemorated at Stone War Memorial Gates 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thanks to the Bucks Herald 
 

Born 17th January 1893 at Stone and baptised there 5th March 1893. 
He was educated at Aylesbury Grammar School. Worked at 
Aylesbury Gas Company and then as a farmer. He moved to 
Canada in 1911 and worked in farming. He enlisted in Canada and 
returned to England with his unit in October 1915.he went to France 
the following February. He was involved in what was described as 
ñsharp encountersò and ñhair breadth escapesò, rising in rank to 
Acting Sergeant by September 1916 at the age of 23. His parents 
received a letter from another local soldier called Trooper Turnham 
that they had lost their son. Before going on his last patrol he gave 
his ring to his Sergeant-Major. He returned safely only to be killed 
by a sniperôs bullet. He was a popular man, remembered in the 
village as a keen cricketer and footballer. He was well known for his 
geniality and comradeship. Prayers were said for his family at both 
Stone and Hartwell churches. Parents: William Farmborough and 
Martha Beechey. William was a Coal merchant. Quartermaster 
Sergeant S F Beechey was awarded the Meritorious Service Medal 
on 4th June 1918 
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September Gardening 
After a very productive and also a very early year in the vegetable garden, time to 
tidy up.  Where the ground has been cleared dig in compost or manure this does 
help to keep the soil in good condition and helps to retain moisture.  Treat any 
parts of the garden the same way if you intend planting trees or shrubs. 

 
Bulbs will be appearing in shops, ready for indoor or 
outdoor planting.  Plant the bulbs as soon as possible 
and do plant quite deep as much soil over the bulb as 
the size of the bulb. 
 

Towards the end of the month bedding plants and 
containers will need to be cleaned up and possibly 
replanted.  If pansies are to be used do only buy ones 
that are in flower otherwise all you will get is green 
leaves until the spring. 

 

Fresh mint can be grown through the winter if required.  Use 5 inch shallow pots, 
fill with compost, pull up some long roots and lay on compost and just cover.  
Keep moist and can be brought inside as the weather gets colder. 
 

September is the month to work on lawns. Itôs also a good time to plant seed as 
the soil is warm and will soon germinate.  Moss can be killed using one of the 
proprietary moss-killers. I was surprised at the complete way the one I used killed 
all the moss.  These also contain fertiliser which will help the grass to grow and 
also cover the bare patches.  It will also help to improve the lawn if it is aerated. It 
can be done with a special tool or a garden fork. 

 

Dinton Organ Restoration 
 

Thank you to everyone who 
 

   Came for Coffee, Stayed for Lunch 
 

on August 2
nd

 
 

 A lovely day, the sun shone - and over £500 was raised. 
The Dinton Organ Restoration Committee thank 

  Mr & Mrs M. Usherwood for their generous hospitality. 
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SPONSORED óRIDE & STRIDEô  

BICYCLE RIDE, HORSE RIDE and WALK  

 

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE  HISTORIC 

CHURCHES TRUST 
 

on                                     

 

Saturday 10
th

 September   10.00am. ï 6.00p.m. 
 

You can walk, cycle or horse ride between the churches of your 

choice to raise money to help our ancient churches. 

 

Money raised goes half to the church of your choice and half to 

the trust for repair of churches. 

 
For more information and sponsorship forms contact 

01296 655692 or erylrm@outlook.com 

 

Come and join the fun! 
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STONE LOCAL HISTORY GROUP 
 

Tuesday September 20th, 7.30pm 
Stone Village Hall 

 

THE LOST FOREST OF BERNWOOD with John Tyler 

 
 

Bernwood Forest was one of several forests of the ancient Kingdom of England 
and was a Royal hunting forest since the Anglo-Saxon C10 kings had a palace at 
Brill and church in Oakley. It was a particular favourite place of Edward the 
Confessor, born in nearby Islip. Now much reduced, it is being regenerated and 
enhanced by the Bucks, Berks and Oxon Wildlife Trust. John is an expert 
photographer and his slides are well worth seeing 
 

Guests welcome 
 

For more information ring Joan 01296 748530 or Carole 01296 748538 
 

 

Haddenham Community Library. Annual Meeting 
Libraries in Bucks are undergoing a major review,  

Haddenham Community Library Needs Support From The Community 
To hear more about the library, join us for the Annual Meeting on  

21st September at the library at 7.30 pm,  
Drinks and nibbles provided. 

 
ALSO 

 
The library is hosting an antiques roadshow event on  

7 October 7 pm Tickets £20. 
Bring your antique with you for a valuation. 

All profits to the Community Library. 
 

PS. You can also nominate the library to receive part of lottery prize money if you 
take part in Aylesbury Vale Lottery 
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@ METHODIST CHAPEL 
EYTHROPE ROAD 

OPEN SUNDAY 4th SEPTEMBER 
12.30-2.00 

SERVING 
PLOUGHMANôS LUNCHES including 

TEA/COFFEE/SQUASH - £3.00 
CAKE ï from 50p (slice) 

Thanks to generous support from village friends and grant makers 

the disabled toilet in the Chapel is completed: 
What a relief! 

Our next project is to update the kitchen to provide more 
working space and better storage facilities. 

When we calculated the annual ófootfallô in the Chapel for 
the purposes of grant applications the figure was some 

three thousand ï so lots of folk can look forward 
to enjoying the result. 

 

 

 

CAKE TASTES BETTER TOGETHER  ... 
Come along to 

CLOWESBOURNE, UPTON 
FRIDAY 30

th
 SEPTEMBER 

10 ï 12 Coffee time 
2 ï 4 Tea time 

BRING & BUY & RAFFLE 
Offers of prizes EXTREMELY WELCOME   

Be part of the worldôs 
Biggest Coffee Morning 

in aid of 
MACMILLAN CANCER SUPPORT 

One in three of us will face cancer ï help 
Macmillan make sure no-one faces it alone 

Contact SUE SPINKS  748369  royandsue1@btinternet.com 
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EXCAVATIONS AT BISHOPSTONE ROAD, STONE 
 
Stone is recorded in the Domesday Book but almost certainly has origins in the 
Anglo-Saxon period.  Anglo-Saxon burials with grave goods, including at least 
eight inhumations and further cremations have been recorded about 500m west 
of the site, while jewellery from the period including a sauce brooch with a cross 
emblem have also been recorded in the village, possibly from further burials. 
Before and after the Domesday Survey of 1086, the village was split between two 
manors: Braceyôs and St. Clereôs manors; held after Domesday by Robert de 
Todeni, Lord of Belvoir and Odo, Bishop of Bayeux and their successors although 
typically granted as stewards or knights fees to their sub-tenants. However; the 
nucleus of the village would have been the church, situated close to the west of 
the site.  St John the Baptist Church had significant structural elements dating to 
the 12

th
-13

th
 Century, and a 14

th
 Century tower (with Victorian additions), but may 

have been preceded by an earlier wooden or stone structure.  The extent of the 
medieval village would have been fairly small, not exceeding that which remained 
in the 19

th
 Century, with RAF aerial photographs of the late 1940s-50s showing 

arable land with ridge and furrow cultivation adjacent to the east and north of 
Vicarage Farm and Stone Croft. 

 
1882 Ordnance Survey map 
 

Due to the potential location 
of the site within the core of 
the medieval village; a geo-
physical survey, using 
magnetometery was carried 
out prior to development 
and identified a series of 
possible enclosures and 
magnetic anomalies that 
potentially indicated 
settlement activity.   
 
 

 
If you look at the plan of the geophysical results, you will see a close correlation 
between what they recorded and what has been revealed in this excavation, both 
on the preliminary plan and in front of you.  The site is dominated by a set of small 
enclosures, possibly tenement plots laid out within the medieval village, with small 
clusters of pits in each enclosure possibly indicating the presence of rubbish pits 
associated with occupation.  The pits contain a range of pottery that has been 
dated to the 10

th
-12 Centuries, very much of the period when the church was 

being built. 
 
 



Parish News                                     15                                       September 2016 

Geophysical survey of the site 
The pits also contained animal bone, 
and slag from metal working.  Iron 
slag had previously been found in the 
fields but had been associated with a 
19

th
 Century smithy to the north-east, 

close to the school, but a building 
found within one enclosure may have 
identified a much earlier smithy.  The 
building has a sunken floor and 
appears connected to a kiln or 
furnace, within which are layers 
indicating at least three floor surfaces 
or distinct phases of use. 
The site has also produced a range of 

metal finds, many of which may be associated with medieval or later village life, 
including buckles and bells, a small lead weight of exactly 10g, essential in 
measuring fine commodities; and resting a small fragment of a lead-tin alloy 
ampullae.  Ampullae were a form of ópilgrim souvenirô, alongside badges, and 
were a type of small moulded (cast) flask used to carry holy water, often ówater of 
St.Thomasô after the murder (and blood) of Thomas Beckett in Canterbury 
Cathedral.  Initially produced in Canterbury from the 12

th
 Century, they were 

widely adopted across religious sites in Britain and were the most common type 
of pilgrim souvenir in the 13

th
 Century.  They were cheap and mass-produced, 

and often small enough to be worn on hats or clothes. 

 
A popular emblem on ampullae was a shell, a leitmotif of pilgrims and pilgrimage 
across Europe; while others displayed figures or inscriptions.  Scallop shells were 
initially associated with the popular pilgrimage site of St. James, Santiago de 
Compostela, Spain, and were widely adopted at European shrines, including 
Canterbury 
Our fragment appears small and ripped, but many ampullae are found in this 
condition and it has been suggested they were deliberately destroyed to óopenô 
them before they were deposited, further suggesting this was not a casual loss. 
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Used by kind permission of Archaeological Solutions and thanks to Vanderbilt Homes 
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More Pictures from the DIG 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  



Parish News                                     18                                       September 2016 

LOCAL SHOPS NO. 2 
The Old Post Office situated at the top of Biggôs lane, Dinton was the site of the 
original Post Office. It is believe that it ceased to be a shop and Post Office in the 
late 1920ôs (probably after the village hall had been built) and it was then re-
housed nearer to the centre of the village. The old Post Office then became a 
private dwelling house.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The earliest Postmaster of the new Post Office was Mr. Osborne who also sold a 
range of groceries, sweets and tobacco etc. as well as postage stamps and 
provided the normal P.O. services. Mrs. Yates then followed for a short time and 
her place was taken by Mrs. and Mr. May and her family. 
  

Using this shop for a few 
items could take rather a 
long time as there was 
generally a queue of people 
and Mrs. May had to find 
and weigh some of the 
items.  If the Post Office 
telephone rang during this 
time Mrs, May would answer 
immediately in case it was a 
telegram arriving.  The Post 
Office closed at noon on 
Saturdays until Monday 
morning opening each day 
until 5pm with a half day 
closing on Wednesday.  

 
The May family left to be followed by Mrs. Hunt.  

  


